AE
Legislative Council

LC Paper No. CB(1)803/04-05
(These minutes have been seen
by the Administration)

Ref : CB1/PL/PLWI/1
Panel on Planning, Lands and Works

Minutes of special meeting
held on Tuesday, 30 November 2004, at 4:30 pm
in the Chamber of the Legislative Council Building

Members present : Hon LAU Wong-fat, GBS, JP (Chairman)
Ir Dr Hon Raymond HO Chung-tai, S.B.St.J., JP
Hon James TO Kun-sun
Hon WONG Yung-kan, JP
Hon Abraham SHEK Lai-him, JP
Hon Albert CHAN Wai-yip
Hon LEE Wing-tat
Hon LI Kwok-ying, MH
Hon Daniel LAM Wai-keung, BBS, JP
Hon Alan LEONG Kah-kit, SC
Hon CHEUNG Hok-ming, SBS, JP

Members attending : Hon James TIEN Pei-chun, GBS, JP
Hon Mrs Selina CHOW LIANG Shuk-yee, GBS, JP
Hon CHAN Yuen-han, JP
Hon CHAN Kam-lam, JP
Hon Emily LAU Wai-hing, JP
Hon Audrey EU Yuet-mee, SC, JP
Hon WONG Kwok-hing, MH
Hon LEUNG Kwok-hung
Dr Hon KWOK Ka-ki
Hon Ronny TONG Ka-wah, SC
Hon KWONG Chi-kin

Members absent  : Hon Patrick LAU Sau-shing, SBS, JP (Deputy Chairman)
Hon CHOY So-yuk
Hon Timothy FOK Tsun-ting, GBS, JP



Public officers
attending

Clerk in attendance :

Staff in attendance

-2-

: The Hon TSANG Yam-kuen, Donald, GBM, JP

Chief Secretary for Administration

Mr SUEN Ming-yeung, Michael, GBS, JP
Secretary for Housing, Planning and Lands

Mr HO Chi-ping, Patrick, JP
Secretary for Home Affairs

Mrs LAU NG Wai-lan, Rita, JP
Permanent Secretary for Housing, Planning and Lands
(Planning and Lands)

Ms LEE Lai-kuen, Shelley, JP
Permanent Secretary for Home Affairs

Ms WONG Sean-yee, Anissa, JP
Director of Leisure and Cultural Services

Miss AU King-chi, JP
Deputy Secretary for Housing, Planning and Lands
(Planning and Lands) 3

Mr KWAN Pak-lam, JP
Project Manager (Kowloon)
Civil Engineering and Development Department

Miss Odelia LEUNG
Chief Council Secretary (1)4

: Ms Bernice WONG

Assistant Legal Adviser 1

Mr Watson CHAN
Head (Research and Library Services)

Ms Vicky LEE
Research Officer 3

Ms Sarah YUEN
Senior Council Secretary (1)6

Ms Christina SHIU
Legislative Assistant




-3-

| Development of West Kowloon Cultural District

(LC Paper No.

LC Paper No

LC Paper No

LC Paper No

LC Paper No

LC Paper No

LC Paper No

CB(1)318/04-05(01) --

. CB(1)318/04-05(03) --

. CB(1)318/04-05(05) --

. CB(1)318/04-05(02) --

. IN06/04-05 -

. CB(1)100/04-05(01) --

. CB(1)210/04-05(01) --

Information paper provided by
the Administration

Questions raised by Hon LEE
Wing-tat concerning
“Development of West
Kowloon Cultural District”
Letter dated 18 November 2004
from a member of the public
Background brief on West
Kowloon  Cultural  District
prepared by the Legislative
Council Secretariat

Information note on *“Public
Private  Partnership  Cases
involving Land Development in
the United Kingdom and the
United States” prepared by
Research & Library Services
Division

Progress Report on the
Development of the West
Kowloon  Cultural  District
provided by the Administration
Addendum No. 4 to the
Invitation for Proposals
document for the Development
of the West Kowloon Cultural
District and Addenda Record
Sheet issued on 29 October
2004)

Members noted that an additional special meeting had been scheduled for
Thursday, 16 December 2004, to receive deputations concerning West Kowloon
Cultural District (WKCD). They also noted the following papers tabled at the

meeting —

(@) Position paper of the Democratic Party (DP) on the development of
WKCD; and

(b) The Administration’s response to questions raised by Mr LEE

Wing-tat.

(Post-meeting note: The above papers were circulated to members vide
LC Paper No. CB(1)381/04-05 on 1 December 2004.)



Action

-4 -

2. The Chief Secretary for Administration (CS) made an opening statement
on the WKCD project, as appended.

(Post-meeting note: The opening statement was circulated to members
vide LC Paper No. CB(1)502/04-05(01) on 14 December 2004)

The single package approach

3. Referring to CS’s claim in the opening statement that the single-package
approach was supported by LegCo, Mr LEE Wing-tat drew members’ attention to
the minutes of the meeting of the Panel on 4 July 2003 and the motion passed by
the Council on 26 November 2003. He pointed out that there was no mention of
the support of the LegCo for the single-package approach on both occasions. In
response, CS explained that the Administration’s paper for the meeting of the
Panel on 4 July 2003 had already stated that the project would be planned and
executed as an “integrated development”, and that the Administration would
negotiate with proponents to select a successful one. The intention of adopting a
single-package approach for the project was therefore clear. He further explained
that it was inevitable that views were diverse on a project of such unprecedented
scale and nature. Despite concerns expressed about the project details at the Panel
meeting and during the motion debate, the overall impression of the
Administration was that members in general supported the project and the
approach.

4, Mr LEE Wing-tat was unconvinced. In his view, as evidenced by the
Airport Core Programme which was an integrated development delivered under a
multi-package arrangement, the term “integrated development” did not necessarily
mean “single-package arrangement”. The motion passed by the Council also did
not contain the expression “single-package approach”. He could hardly accept the
claim that the single-package approach had LegCo’s blessing.

5. In response, CS maintained that paragraphs 12 and 14 of the
Administration’s paper for the meeting on 4 July 2003 had already explained that a
single-package approach would be adopted for the WKCD project. Moreover, the
amendment to the motion moved by Mr Albert HO Chun-yan urging the
Administration to shelve the project in consideration of its single-package
arrangement was negatived. This was evidence that LegCo supported the project.

6. Mr LEE Wing-tat pointed out that the many problems highlighted in CS’s
opening statement to justify the single-package approach could be solved through
the making of a master layout plan without compromising the integrated design
and operation of WKCD, according to many professional bodies. Ir Dr Raymond
HO Chung-tai shared his view and quoted the example of the development of new
towns. Dr HO pointed out that the single-package arrangement might not
necessarily reduce the possibility of claims. There was also no consensus among
the engineering professionals on whether the single-package approach should be
supported.




Action

-5-

7. In response, CS stressed that the possible problems of dividing WKCD
into small packages were identified through careful study and recognized by many
experienced professionals. Despite claims by some professional bodies that the
problems could be resolved, no specific proposals were put forward. The
professional bodies might have under-estimated the amount of additional
resources required from the Government and the difficulties that would arise from
the need to prepare a number of complicated but interlocking land grant
documents if the multi-package approach were adopted. CS stressed that the
project required centralized planning and co-ordination in order to enhance
management effectiveness and to reduce lead-time. If the single-package
approach was not adopted, there would be great difficulty in developing the
40-hectare site in WKCD into a new cultural and architectural icon for Hong Kong
in an integrated manner.

8. Mr James TIEN Pei-chun pointed out that the Liberal Party had all along
objected the approach as it restricted participation. He opined that with the picking
up of the property market, the Administration should build the cultural facilities
and the canopy on its own and auction off the surrounding land because more
revenues could be raised in this manner. The revenues might even help to restore
budget balance for the Government. Mr Abraham SHEK Lai-him also highlighted
similar proposal by the Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong.

9. In response, CS clarified that according to the previous draft Outline
Zoning Plan, only about 20% of the WKCD site would be used for residential and
commercial use. It might be far-fetched to highlight the financial returns the
Government could secure from auctioning off all the land concerned. The
planning procedures so involved would further mean that the Government could
only benefit from such returns many years later. It was also doubtful whether such
one-off income would suffice to overcome the budgetary deficits which were
recurrent in nature.

10. In this regard, Mr James TIEN enquired about the difference in returns for
the Government between adopting the single-package arrangement and auctioning
off all the land concerned. In reply, CS said that since there was no plan to pursue
the latter approach, such estimates had not been made.

11. Many members urged the Administration to address concerns raised by
the community about the single-package approach. They expressed the following
views:

(@) Like the Cyberport which was now clearly a property project, the
WKCD project was a property development project under the guise
of a cultural project. The single-package arrangement would benefit
giant developers;

(b) In consideration of the Government’s present stringent fiscal
condition, which had led to cuts in services to the public, it was



Action

12.

()

-6-

inconceivable that the Government should have readily forsaken the
large amount of income which could be generated from sale of the 40
hectares of land in the WKCD site; and

Despite the economy of scale made possible by adopting the
single-package approach, there was a need to avoid creating a
monopoly by a single developer of the land resources in West
Kowloon, otherwise he would be in a position to determine property
prices, the supply of luxury flats and the operation of arts and cultural
facilities for the next decade.

In response, CS made the following points —

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

(€)

Unlike the Cyberport, the WKCD project would be awarded through
a competitive process. The public would have the opportunity to
examine and express views on the three screened-in proposals for the
project. They would be able to ascertain whether the project was a
property development project after examining the three proposals in
the exhibition;

The WKCD project was a cultural project. The commercial and
residential development included therein was to support the cultural
facilities, and to create and sustain the flow of people required to
make the WKCD a cultural centre. In this regard, measures would be
taken to prevent the successful proponent from making massive
profits from the project;

According to an internal assessment in 2002-03, Government would
have to fork out $11.8 billion if it were to develop the WKCD project
itself. Given such substantial capital investment and Government’s
huge budget deficits, Government had found it very difficult to fund
the construction of the arts and cultural facilities. The single-package
approach was therefore the only viable mode of financial
arrangement. Since the approach was the basis of the Invitation For
Proposals (IFP) for the project, if it were dispensed with at this stage,
the IFP would need to be started all over again;

Only seven of the 40 hectares of land in WKCD had been earmarked
for residential and commercial development, whereas the
government planned to release 300 hectares of land over the next five
years. At present there was also 99 hectares of land available on the
Application List. There was no question that the successful
proponent would enjoy a monopoly of land resources;

Development parameters in the preferred proposal, including plot
ratio, gross floor area for different land uses, building height
restrictions and open spaces, had to be agreed by the Town Planning



Action

-7-

Board (TPB) before the Government and the successful proponent
entered into a provisional agreement. The Government would then
formally submit the proposed development parameters to the TPB for
processing according to the statutory procedures. The successful
proponent was therefore subject to planning controls in developing
WKCD; and

(f) The Administration would endeavour to explain the objectives and
details of the project to the public. Public consultation including
exhibitions displaying the screened-in proposals, discussion forums
and separate briefing sessions for the LegCo and relevant statutory
and advisory bodies would be conducted from 16 December 2004.

13. In reply to Mr Abraham SHEK on whether the WKCD project could be
split into the real estate portion and the cultural portion, CS pointed out that in that
case the project would have to start from scratch because it involved fundamental
changes to the IFP.

14. Mr Ronny TONG Ka-wah opined that the justifications put forth by the
CS for adopting the single-package approach were not reasons but possible
consequences of adopting a multi-package approach. He asked whether the
Administration had conducted a detailed comparison between the single package
approach and the approach of dividing the WKCD project into small packages. CS
replied in the affirmative and agreed to consider providing the relevant
information. He also explained that the justifications were considerations taken
into account by the Administration in deciding to adopt the single-package
approach.

The plot ratio

15. Pointing out that the plot ratio proposed in the three screened-in proposals
exceeded the Administration’s proposed plot ratio of 1.81, Mr CHEUNG
Hok-ming enquired how the 1.81 was worked out. In reply, CS explained that it
was the plot ratio adopted in the Concept Competition for the WKCD project,
which had not taken into consideration commercial returns and effectiveness.
According to an in-house study undertaken by the Administration in 2003, the
difference between the capital investment required for the project and the proceeds
from auctioning off the land concerned would be over $11.8 billion if the plot ratio
of 1.81 was adopted. In this regard, the Secretary for Housing, Planning and
Lands (SHPL) supplemented that the initial outline zoning plan of the WKCD site
originally provided for a regional park amounting to 20 hectares, as well as
commercial and residential development plus other open spaces and government,
institution and community uses. The 1.81 plot ratio was based on the scale of the
original provision of commercial and residential development in addition to the
arts and cultural facilities that would be provided. When it was later decided that
arts and cultural facilities would be provided and operated in the area with funding
from the commercial and residential development, a more flexible approach in the




Action

-8-

plot ratio was considered appropriate to enable the funding gap of $11.8 billion
referred to by the CS to be bridged. As such, 1.81 was intended as a base reference
for proponents in drawing up their proposals. They might submit proposals
exceeding 1.81 but any such proposal had to be substantiated with sufficient and
reasonable justifications.

16. Mr James TO kun-sun enquired whether a development density higher
than 1.81 would be turned down if the public opposed to it. In reply, CS
emphasized the Administration’s readiness to take into consideration all views
when deciding whether a higher development density should be accepted and to
explain its decision to the public. He believed the public would consider any
proposal for a higher density reasonably and sensibly.

The canopy

17. Ir Dr Raymond HO Chung-tai pointed out that there was no consensus
among the engineering professionals on whether the canopy should be supported.
He enquired about the possibility of dispensing with the canopy if there was a
consensus in the community that the canopy was too costly to build and/or
maintain. Miss CHAN Yuen-han also highlighted public concern about the
canopy. Inresponse, CS pointed out that if the canopy was to be dispensed with, it
was necessary to start the WKCD project all over again because the canopy was
one of the mandatory requirements in the IFP.

18. Ir Dr Raymond HO was unconvinced. He cautioned that the canopy
might pose maintenance problems, and said that he was not aware from previous
papers on the WKCD project that the canopy was a mandatory requirement. He
also pointed out that the WKCD site had been left idle for over ten years. The need
to re-conduct the IFP should not be a great concern. In response, CS recalled that
at the meeting in July 2003 the Panel urged the Administration to expedite the
project. He also recalled that the maintenance problems of the canopy had already
been thoroughly discussed during the motion debate. In this regard, Ir Dr HO said
that the Panel’s stance could change if the project details were different. In
response, CS confirmed that the details were the same apart from the adoption of
two new measures to enhance transparency and accountability, namely, the
requirement for public consultations with a view to soliciting public opinions on
the proposals and deletion of the draft outline zoning plan from the IFP so as to
subject the project to TPB approval.

The financial arrangements

19. Mr_ CHEUNG Hok-ming urged the Administration to enhance the
transparency of the financial arrangements for the WKCD project to address
public concern. Inresponse, CS explained that in deciding whether to disclose the
financial arrangements, the following five factors had to be considered —




Action

-9-

(@ The financial information submitted by the proponents was
commercially sensitive and could not be unilaterally disclosed
without their consent;

(b) The Administration had yet to negotiate with the proponents to
obtain the best offers. If the financial information was disclosed and
the proponents knew what their competitors had offered, the
competitive tension required to secure the best deal would be
undermined. The proponents, especially the one who knew that its
offer was higher than others, might be reluctant to enhance their
proposals.  This would significantly weaken Government’s
bargaining power in the negotiations;

(c) If the financial information was disclosed at this stage, proponents
knowing the price offers of other proponents might revise
downwards their offers in the ensuing negotiations with Government
or collude in doing so. It would not be in the public interest for this to
happen;

(d) The proponents might only agree to disclose selected financial
information which would be to their advantage and withhold
information to their disadvantage. Selective disclosure would be
misleading since the public would not be presented with a full picture
of the financial proposals; and

(e) Such selected financial information might be distorted by the
underlying assumptions, such as cost and revenue estimates, which
were still being assessed by Government and would likely be a matter
relevant to future negotiations.  Disclosure of the financial
information without the full knowledge of the underlying
assumptions would not help the public understand the proposals.

CS stressed that it would be irresponsible to disclose the financial information
before negotiation was concluded. Government would account for the
information satisfactorily to the public, as soon as it was safe to do so.

20. Mr James TO found the above explanations unconvincing. In his view,
the Administration should have made it a condition in the IFP that the financial
arrangements would be disclosed to the public. The officials concerned should be
held accountable for failing to do so. To address concern that the Administration
might enter into secretive deals with the proponents, the IFP with inclusion of such
a condition should be re-launched. In response, CS pointed out that it was a
common practice supported and relied upon by bidders and tenderers that funding,
costs and price negotiations were usually kept confidential. He also drew
members’ attention to the requirement for public consultations mentioned in
paragraph 18 above. He said that the requirement was unprecedented and had only
been added in March 2004 in response to strong public requests as gathered from



Action

-10 -

prior public consultation on the WKCD. The Administration had already made a
significant step forward in enhancing the transparency of the project.

21. Mr_Albert CHAN Wai-yip cautioned that the WKCD project might
develop into a serious scandal if not properly monitored. In his view, if income
was to be generated from property development to fund the development and
management of the arts and cultural facilities to be provided in WKCD, it would
be important to know the relevant financial arrangements, in particular whether the
funding would be one-off or recurrent in nature, in order to determine whether they
were to the benefits of the developers only.

22. In response, CS reiterated that to assure members and the public that fair
financial arrangements would be made taking into account the then prevailing
circumstances, details of the arrangements would be disclosed in full after the
successful proponent had been selected but before the project agreement was
signed. Mr Albert CHAN however considered that the disclosure was too late by
then to serve any purpose.

The cultural policy

23. Miss Emily LAU opined that a comprehensive arts and cultural policy
should be formulated before taking the WKCD project forward. In response to her
on whether there was consensus as regards the cultural policy and the arts and
cultural facilities to be provided in WKCD, CS emphasized that consultation on
the project had been conducted since 1999 with the aim to achieve consensus.
Although a consensus was hard to come by given the nature of the arts and cultural
sector, the sector had already been thoroughly consulted before the details of the
arts and cultural facilities were worked out. Moreover, the project enjoyed the
support of the Culture and Heritage Commission (the Commission) and the Hong
Kong Arts Development Council, and could act as a catalyst to promote the
development of arts and culture in Hong Kong. He stressed that the views of the
arts and cultural sector would be taken into account during the proposal selection
process, in implementation of the project and, in particular, in the management of
the arts and cultural facilities.

24. The Secretary for Home Affairs (SHA) supplemented that after three
years’ hard work and two large-scale consultation exercises with the arts and
cultural sector, the Commission had submitted its Policy Recommendations
Report to the Government in 2003, and the Government had formally responded to
the Report in February 2004, accepting most of the recommendations therein. The
remaining recommendations related to institutional framework and resource
deployment might require further study and exploration. The Commission had
advocated certain principles in formulating the development and operation plan
for WKCD, namely, the “people-oriented’, ‘partnership’ and ‘community-driven’
principles to ensure the plan would be open, fair and proper. In particular, the
Government was urged to facilitate the formation of a partnership between
developers and the cultural sector so as to allow the latter to participate in the




Action

-11 -

planning and future operation of the facilities in the district. The project, if
implemented, would help promote arts and cultural development of Hong Kong.

25. Dr KWOK Ka-ki however opined that the development of arts and culture
in Hong Kong should be independent of the WKCD project. Miss Emily LAU
also pointed out that certain members of the Commission did not support the
project. In response, CS opined that it was no surprise that individual members of
the Commission might not support the project. In this regard, SHA confirmed that
when the project was discussed in 2003, all members of the Commission
supported the idea of launching the WKCD project. Even today, despite various
comments on details of the project, the arts and cultural sector as a whole
supported the project and the provision of arts and cultural facilities in WKCD,
and hoped arts and cultural development could be further advanced.

Management and monitoring of the project

26. Mr WONG Kwok-hing called for the introduction of an open monitoring
mechanism to oversee WKCD’s selection process, development process and the
operation of the core arts and cultural facilities. In this regard, he opined that a
statutory body like the Airport Authority should be established. In response, CS
agreed with Mr WONG on the need for proper monitoring of the project, and said
that the specific details would be proposed by the successful proponent for
endorsement by the Government. Apart from the option of setting up a statutory
body, there were other feasible alternatives such as the establishment of trust
funds. The mechanism for monitoring the operation of museums and performance
venues might also differ but the basic requirement was that the arts and cultural
sector, relevant experts, the Government and the public should be involved.

217. Mr_Alan LEONG Kah-kit expressed concern about the difficulties in
effectively monitoring the WKCD project by agreement/contract as the project
would span over 30 years during which circumstances might greatly change. In
particular, commercial entities were good at capitalizing on legal loopholes to
maximize their profits. He urged the Administration to pay special attention to the
need to plug all possible loopholes. CS thanked Mr LEONG for his valuable
advice.

Public consultation exercise

28. Ms Emily LAU Wai-hing and Miss CHAN Yuen-han enquired whether
other alternatives would be considered if the public found all three screened-in
proposals unacceptable. In response, CS stated his belief that the public would be
able to give a clear indication of their preference. For this purpose, a questionnaire
would be prepared to effectively solicit views during the public consultation
exercise, so that the best option for taking forward the WKCD project could be
identified for negotiation with the proponents. He however stressed the need to
assess public views in perspective with emphasis on the quality rather than the
quantity. Ms LAU considered the above response undesirable. Miss CHAN also




Action

-12 -

opined that in view of the grave public concern about the project, the
Administration should include in the questionnaire choices of other options and
take forward the WKCD project according to the feedback, including the adoption
of a multi-package approach if it was so preferred by the public.

29. Mr_Abraham SHEK opined that to ensure effectiveness of public
consultation, the Administration should give more thinking to its mode and
disclose all necessary information. In this regard, Mr LEUNG Kwok-hung urged
the Administration to conduct a referendum on whether to shelve the project,
whether to adopt the single-package approach and whether to construct the canopy
and so many museums. In response, CS said that as many details as possible
would be provided in the public consultation exercise to facilitate the public to
express views on the project. As to the proposal to conduct a referendum, he
confirmed that there was no such plan. The planned public consultation exercise
should be able to gauge public views effectively.

30. Mr Ronny TONG asked whether the questionnaire would include a
question soliciting the public’s views on whether they supported the
single-package approach. In response, CS said that should such a question be
included in the questionnaire, the Administration would need to ensure that the
implications of dropping the single-package approach had been properly
explained to the public. He also pointed out that given the extensive discussion on
the WKCD project in the community, the public should know that if they
supported any one of the three screened-in proposals, this would mean they also
supported the adoption of the single-package approach. There was therefore no
need to include the question in the questionnaire.

31. Mr Albert CHAN asked whether the WKCD project would be shelved in
response to public calls to halt it. Dr KWOK Ka-ki also urged the Administration
to solicit public views on whether they supported the single-package approach and
the canopy if they knew the financial implications, and to provide in the
questionnaire the option of shelving the project. Mr LEUNG Kwok-hung shared
their views and called upon the Administration to refrain from proceeding with the
WKCD project to ensure the entire community would be consulted on how it
should be taken forward.

32. In response, CS explained that the public could propose shelving the
project in the questionnaire under the column “other views”. He considered
backtracking on the project in the face of difficulties irresponsible, and pointed out
that at the Panel meeting in July 2003, the Panel had urged the Administration to
expedite the project. The public consultation would provide an opportunity for the
community to gain better understanding of and give views on the project.

33. Mr Alan LEONG urged the Administration not to make a decision on the
WKCD project until completion of the public consultation. The decision should,
where appropriate, include the possibility of dropping the single-package
arrangement. This was because a project of such a large scale could not proceed




Action

-13-

smoothly without sufficient public support. Since there was grave public concern
about the single-package arrangement, as a responsible government, the
Administration should take action to address the concern despite the progress
made in respect of the project.

34. In response, CS reiterated that the Administration was willing to listen to
views of Members and the public, and urged Members to go to the exhibition on
WKCD and to continue to give views on the project. He considered that the public
should be given the opportunity to express views on the project before the
Administration decided on the way forward

Motions

35. Members then discussed the three motions proposed by Mr LEE Wing-tat.
Motion 1

36. Mr LEE Wing-tat moved motion 1 as follows:

ARER B EORBUT 2 e 15U RE SR B W SR R AT B DA B —IH
HRiEUE TG E -7

“That this Panel requests the Government to comprehensively review the
appropriateness of adopting the single package approach in the delivery of
the West Kowloon Cultural District Project.”

37. At the Chairman’s invitation, Mr LEE Wing-tat briefed members on his
proposed motion 1. He explained that the wording of motion 1 was come up after
discussion with other members. The wording was phrased in such a way that
whether the single-package approach should be adopted would be decided after
public consultation. Mr CHEUNG Hok-ming stated that Members of the
Democratic Alliance for Betterment of Hong Kong (DAB) supported the present
wording of motion 1. In response to him on the meaning of “comprehensively
review” in the motion, Mr LEE clarified that the motion urged the Administration
to consider the views expressed by the public during the planned public
consultation exercise.




Action

-14 -

38. Mr James TO referred to the motion passed by the Panel at the meeting on
27 April 2004, namely, “That this Panel opposes the land and financial
arrangements proposed by the Administration for the West Kowloon Cultural
District”, and expressed concern that if the Panel passed motion 1, it might be
interpreted as the Panel softening its stance on the WKCD project. He also
expressed regret that the Administration had not heeded to the motion passed by
the Panel in April 2004. Mr Albert CHAN said that since the public and Panel
members expressed grave concern about the single-package arrangement, the
Administration should be urged to drop the approach instead of reviewing its
appropriateness. He proposed to amend motion 1 as follows:

AEREGERBUTHEN SR — AR - REERE L
RESUR i A R AT B DU —TH H S iU T e ol e -7

“That this Panel requests the Government to stop vetting proposals invited
under the single-package arrangement for development of the West
Kowloon Cultural District Project, and comprehensively review the
appropriateness of adopting the single package approach in the delivery of
the West Kowloon Cultural District Project.”

39. Mr LEE Wing-tat said that if motion 1 as amended by Mr CHAN was
negatived, the Administration might take it to mean that the Panel supported the
single-package arrangement. Mr CHEUNG Hok-ming said that pending
completion of the public consultation, which might be extended to six months if
Mr LEE’s motion 2 was passed, Members of DAB had reservation about opposing
to the single-package arrangement. This was because the outcome of the public
consultation should be given due consideration. Mr Daniel LAM Wai-keung
echoed Mr CHEUNG’s view on Mr Albert CHAN’s proposed amendment. Mr
Alan LEONG indicated support for the present wording of motion 1, and said that
any decision to oppose the single-package arrangement should be made after the
public consultation.

40. Mr_Albert CHAN maintained that to facilitate conduct of the
comprehensive review proposed in motion 1, the Administration should be
requested to stop vetting proposals under the single-package arrangement.

41, Mr Abraham SHEK reminded Mr Albert CHAN that he had voted for the
motion at the Council meeting in November 2003. In other words, he supported
the WKCD project. In response, Mr Albert CHAN pointed out that he had been
misled by the Administration and as a remedy, he therefore proposed to amend
motion 1. He urged members to support his proposed amendment.

42. CS drew members’ attention to the reasons for the single-package
approach in paragraph 12 above, and the implications of dropping it.



Action

-15-

43. Mr Albert CHAN'’s proposed amendment to motion 1 was seconded by
Mr James TO. The Chairman put Mr CHAN’s amendment to vote. Three
members voted for the amendment. Six members voted against it. The Chairman
declared that the amendment was negatived.

44, Motion 1 as proposed by Mr LEE Wing-tat was seconded by Messrs
James TO and WONG Yung-kan. The Chairman put motion 1 to vote. Eight
members voted for motion 1. One member abstained. The Chairman declared that
motion 1 was carried.

Motion 2

45, Mr LEE Wing-tat then moved motion 2 as follows:

AR B (e Rs BUM R 9 TUBE S UR Bl AR S YR sl - H=1E H
IESZENE A - W EHTRE R A R A PG LR SR S 1 R R AT R R E
H o

“That this Panel urges the Government to extend the consultation period
for the proposals for the development of the West Kowloon Cultural
District from three months to six months, and to re-consult the public on
the West Kowloon Cultural District Project.”

46. Introducing motion 2, Mr LEE Wing-tat stressed the need to extend the
public consultation period on the WKCD project from three to six months for the
community to express views. In response, CS explained that public consultation
on the project had started as early as 1996 and was still under way. The exhibitions
on the screened-in proposals would last three months but the public consultation
process would continue. If the exhibition period was to be extended, approval
from all the screened-in proponents and the availability of exhibition venues
would need to be secured. Mr LEE clarified that motion 2 only sought to urge the
Administration to extend the public consultation period.

47. In response to Mr Alan LEONG, CS clarified that the Administration
intended to obtain public views during the exhibitions and then make a decision on
the project. The Administration did not envisage that there would be problems if
the public consultation period was to be extended to six months.

48. Motion 2 was seconded by Ir Dr Raymond HO and Messrs James TO and
WONG Yung-kan. The Chairman put motion 2 to vote. Seven members voted for
motion 2. The Chairman declared that motion 2 was carried.

Motion 3

49. Mr LEE Wing-tat then moved motion 3 as follows:




Action

-16-

“Ti@hﬁéiﬁﬁﬁffigﬁﬁ%*iJ%E AREE G EFEET \EEEJ\_
RS R TR DA R R LR

%% i‘%% "

“That, with regard to the West Kowloon Cultural District Project, this
Panel urges the Government to make open the information on the
financial arrangements of the three screened-in proposals, so that the
public can comment on such proposals on the basis of concrete
information.”

50. When introducing motion 3, Mr LEE W.ing-tat opined that in
consideration of the financial implications of the project and public expectation for
greater transparency, the Government should disclose the information on the
financial arrangements of the three screened-in proposals, so that the public could
comment on such proposals on the basis of concrete information. One of the
Administration’s reasons for refusing to disclose the information was that the
proponents might collude against the Government. This reason could not stand
because, according to Adam Smith, the author of “An Inquiry into the Nature and
Causes of the Wealth of Nations”, it was natural for businessmen to collude. Only
open competition could effectively deter such natural behaviours.

51. Mr Abraham SHEK urged Mr LEE Wing-tat to withdraw motion 3 in
consideration of the need to observe contractual obligations and to have trust in the
Government. He said that members of The Alliance would not support motion 3.
He also called upon members of DAB to vote against motion 3. In response, Mr
LEE Wing-tat pointed out that the IFP was different from a tendering exercise and
as such there was no contractual obligation to keep the financial arrangements
confidential. In this regard, CS recapitulated the points mentioned in paragraph 19
above.

52. Mr James TO was unconvinced. He opined that to protect public
interests, the Administration should persuade the proponents to agree to disclosure
of the information on the financial arrangements. Should they refuse, the project
might be shelved. He also reiterated his point that the requirement to disclose the
information on the financial arrangements should in the first place be included in
the IFP document. Mr Abraham SHEK however urged the Administration to
stand firm in order not to undermine the authority of the executive-led
Government. In his view, disclosure of the information might not necessarily help
safeguard public interests.

53. Motion 3 was seconded by Mr James TO. The Chairman put the motion
to vote. Four members voted for the motion. Two members voted against it and
two members abstained. The Chairman declared that the motion was negatived.

(Post-meeting note: In accordance with Rule 77(13) of the Rules of
Procedure, motion 3 should be taken as having been decided by the Panel
in the affirmative. A press statement on the motions was issued by the



Action -17 -

Secretariat after the meeting. A letter formally advising the
Administration of the passing of the above three motions and the press
statement was issued on 1 December 2004. The wording of the three
motions and the press statement were also circulated to members vide LC
Paper No. CB(1)381/04-05 on 1 December 2004.)

I Any other business

54. There being no other business, the meeting ended at 7:20 pm

Council Business Division 1
Legislative Council Secretariat
28 January 2005




Bt

Annex

CB(1)502/04-05(01)

2 ERIFKEIRFR
TR g TN g
2004 # 11 * 30 p » * = 4 p* 30 &

b R R

FHFARL AN E LAY R
LAT e EHE R BRI &
AR ER R e R AL

EEEM: A e ol d - o
1t E#R41 7 AR IR g A A
R s FEFZ BLERE:

S A I R L

f%%“ﬂ“i%"ﬁ? 2”“\:7*—3"%?1
=B - u A ﬁspp\véﬁﬁwﬁﬁ
RN R fe s R g B R

74

. AT RS PR o AN F F
i?gﬁpi“\zké 'B‘F%\ —F']“;E-"jz;}‘{ﬁ
NEBEREFERFLELEFE AP L



1.

T4 2RI BFEMED
TR D 0 F BN P2
FREt o MU A F Rk E B &) R B

ﬁg#zepﬁﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂﬁ S
35%$;§~ﬂi%%mus SRl ok
FR@nL & R NP R D

£ L
Ao LR R R

£ BB A -
LR w B nE o m#-L BB
F A o i B



Fo- R L T M 4 A
itk (T 5 T HERC R & A e

e F o 2 L AR R R

BT R LR K%
S It I L U R
B RGEFle m ik Faedpid o B D

RS 0 BT E KR s
hd v FFREAHE TR KR
Rt ~Eg o i ESamp e A
2 E S HFEFPE -

R EF FEREFELIFRE Z
REAE RS T ARG Y R
o 1 iF 2 i FEEa T F 5
g > L7 MEIARR S A F & ek R
;’:ff’ﬂ:egggo

AATER RS & PR R TR OT

R o
EUAAFEE 0 BT 4 WHE
> &ggﬁfﬂ N ﬂfr'ﬁ;‘i R
L

H



[E—"
(=)

T H LG ITL K IR o TRy
?\/@?‘ﬂ}ﬁ?&ﬁ‘r - S Y E‘g’*’t
BT o ded 4 A A2 R ]
B X p oo

AS)/S ol e A= I A L EE SERCRE N MR ES
Ko Wg B2 EfrG Mk £
o s REFEREE ) Ao A 3T Tt
2 o~ mP PR R

ol oo Ho— % @:%#t:} 5% A
—@#\Pviﬁz J{f‘j—;ﬁﬁ-if B 5w
RN AR R U =E I
A, F EL - i%ﬁ'ﬂ:‘;;‘ég%\»
A AR BB F B EREGE TEAR
gk E - %%Fﬁer’&%wt&ﬁﬁ
T BRI BB T D R
B2R&H "~ REs) 0 E - FEE
Xa gz o me)\r—:];? ?H%‘Jé‘



FE e 1,81 et BIfEE o AR
T

& ";?«ﬁ ’;F’J:FTz ggqt
£

OB GRS G o AP R Rip
KWy H T BB kR R D
B E Bl g R 2 SR AL
BPoREBET LR AL EE Y ¥
LAPAS < B :—P%o;\,;,aa,v‘mgj;a Zg_-ﬁ
hiEEE Mt K¥E e bR
LR R Y SCRE -
TR R G RN e A S
A 4 ﬁi‘j\?,r N — 3;—»}; > LR
*ué\%iﬁtf’o

FT 2 #}39 F e B R4
e I Y
'I?L’ff’ﬁ ?’ﬁ' S A R
FEPERT D g T g AL

Beho A g iFd A ML P~
EEAC N A | *‘;%fr* > L jl,kg
Bio AR oM E G R r g

W B

?_\4\ jﬁ“' - W
“‘é “3‘\ AN \Pﬂ{-\ F_k ~=h ~ml

37“‘



= &
X T
ik
— ‘E_ﬂ«
a

=
. H\
s
3
%y
.I'a

“I‘j’
%

(

d

KW nE T iR d g EKT .
AEdpdt o F 4 AP g B kR
TECPEM G PRI A4
ks iRy E R0
FFERL P A EFEFE - FF
I U N2 A 3 B

X
Bk 2 g BEAfrERT op
TATRAEAP - REFR
R

%
AR AR R EFRY F R L
g Lo RS HG MEATN AL S



